TOWN OF MADISON
PLANNING BOARD
PO BOX 248
MADISON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03849
planning@madison-nh.org
Phone: 603-367-4332 x303 Fax: 603-367-4547

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES
November 5, 2025

MEMBERS PRESENT: Marc Ohlson, Chairman, Paul Marks, Vice Chair, Paul Littlefield, Karl Nordlund,
Adam Price, Donnal Hempel, Tia Gagnon - Alternate; Joe Viana- Alternate.

MEMBERS EXCUSED: All members and alternates were present.

OTHERS PRESENT: Aysia Wellinghurst, MadTV, Katharine Young, Land Use Boards Administrator,
Attorney Kerriann Roman, Attorney Francis Parisi and members of the public

POSTING DATES & LOCATIONS: Notice was posted on October 29, 2025 at the Madison and Silver Lake
Post Offices, in the Madison Town Hall - upper and lower levels.

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Ohlson called the regular meeting of the Madison Planning Board to order
on November 5, 2025 at 7:00 PM.

ELEVATION OF ALTERNATES: Chairman Ohlson explained that we have two alternates and one empty
seat. Young, Land Use Boards Administrator stated there was not an empty seat and Chairman Ohlson
stated he was going to elevate the alternates as he will have to recuse himself.

Motion by Price, seconded by Littlefield to elevate both Alternates, Gagnon and Viana to full voting
members. The motion passed with a vote of 5-0. This motion was then clarified by Keriann Roman,
Esquire, Planning Board Attorney that alternates should only be elevated if needed, for voting purposes.
As discussed, Chairman Ohlson would be recusing himself during the meeting and it was decided to wait
and elevate an alternate at that time and the initial motion was retracted by Price. Chairman Ohlson
clarified that no alternates were being elevated at this time.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Marks, seconded by Littlefield, to approve the agenda as presented.
The motion passed with a vote of 6-0.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: October 1, 2025:

Motion by Marks, seconded by Price to approve the October 1, 2025 minutes as written. The motion
passed with a vote of 6-0.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: October 1, 2025 — Non-Public (made public)

Motion by Price, seconded by Littlefield to approve the October 1, 2025 Non-Public minutes (made
public) as written. The motion passed with a vote of 6-0.

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 1 of 9


mailto:planning@madison-nh.org

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: October 16, 2025 — Pike Industries Site Visit

Motion by Marks, seconded by Price to approve the October 16, 2025 minutes from the Pike Industries
Site Visit. The motion passed with a vote of 6-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT/NEW BUSINESS: Chairman Ohlson asked if there was any public comment. Mark
Graffam, an Eidelweiss Commissioner explained that he was here tonight to ask for a contingency on
approving the building permit for the cell phone tower and he was unsure if he should do this now.
Chairman Ohlson advised him to wait until Case #25-07 was opened and Graffam can bring up his issue
then. Since there was no more public comment, Chairman Ohlson closed the public comment.

NEW BUSINESS:

Case #25-07 - Vertex Towers, LLC - Site Plan Review

Chairman Ohlson read aloud Case #25-07 — Site Plan Review request from Francis D. Parisi, Esquire,
authorized agent for Vertex Towers, LLC, O Tasker Hill Road (off Oak Ridge Road), Tax Map 206, Lot 71 —
The proposed project is construction of a wireless communications facility consisting of 100-foot-tall
monopole tower on top of a 1-foot foundation (105 feet to top of lightning rod) inside a 70-foot x 40
foot fenced in compound. Chairman Ohlson recused himself due to a conflict of interest as he is the
owner of the property and stepped down from the board.

Mark Graffam, an Eidelweiss Commissioner requested that the Planning Board include conditions
requiring a bond to cover potential damage to Eidelweiss roads and the water system during
construction.

Paul Marks, Vice Chairman explained that he will be taking over the duties of chairing Case #25-07.
Young, Land Use Boards Administrator stated postings were done on October 29, 2025 at Madison Town
Hall, Upper and Lower Levels, Madison and Silver Lake Post Offices.

Motion by Littlefield, seconded by Price to elevate Gagnon to a full voting member. The motion passed
with a vote of 5-0.

Marks, Vice Chairman explained that at the joint meeting in October, he asked Attorney Parisi for plans
showing abutters and he felt it was unfair for the board to get these plans tonight. Attorney Parisi
stated that he believes that the board has a completed application and they should be ready to approve.
He further explained that that since the joint meeting on October 15, 2025, additional documentation
had been provided including a more detailed abutters plan and survey plan with existing conditions.
Marks, Vice Chairman asked Attorney Parisi if he was going to give anymore presentation tonight.
Attorney Parisi stated no, that he did his presentation at the October 15, 2025 joint meeting.

Marks, Vice Chairman asked the board If they had any questions on the materials submitted?

Attorney Francis Parisi presented on behalf of Vertex Towers, LLC. He explained that they were
previously as a joint meeting with the Zoning Board and Planning Board, which the Planning Board
continued the case until tonight and the Zoning Board continued their case until November 19, 2025.
He noted that since the last meeting, additional documentation had been provided including a more
detailed abutters plan and survey plan with existing conditions which he provided to the Planning

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 2 of 9



Several board members raised questions about the tower, including:

e How many carriers would be on the tower: Marks, Vice Chairman asked if the tower will
initially support T-Mobile, with commitments from them, and it will be constructed to
accommodate a total of four carriers. This includes the expectation that other carriers will want
to join once the tower becomes operational, thereby improving overall service.

¢ The height above the treetops: Marks, Vice Chairman questioned how high the tower would be
above the treetops? Attorney Parisi explained the tower's height varies due to the topography
of the hill. While certain trees may be 15-20 feet above the base in some areas, the tower is
planned to extend above the trees on the eastern side, whereas it will seem below the trees to
the west. Marks, Vice Chairman also asked when construction of the tower would begin and
how long would it take. Attorney Parisi explained construction take will start in the spring and
take six weeks but that he needed the driveway permit from Village District of Eidelweiss (VDOE)
first.

¢ Foundation design: Marks, Vice Chairman asked about the stabilization of the ground around
the site? Attorney Parisi explained that the foundation design is pending a geotechnical analysis
to determine the ground conditions and that this analysis will inform the specific foundation
structure, considering factors like the possibility of hitting ledge.

Price questioned whether the board could approve the site plans without the Zoning Board Variances.
Keriann Roman, Esquire, Planning Board Attorney explained they can, with the conditional approvals.

e Coverage area: Price asked about the coverage areas. Attorney Parisi explained that the tower
aims to address gaps in coverage, predominantly along Route 113 corridor and to the west of
Eidelweiss. It is part of a broader strategy to enhance T-Mobile's network, particularly as higher
frequency bands used in 5G technologies necessitate more localized towers to maintain
coverage. Price questioned how popular is T-Mobile since Vertex Towers, LLC does not have a
commitment from Verizon or US Cellular? Attorney Parisi explained that T-Mobile is the third
largest carrier in the United States and that you cannot discriminate amongst carriers. Marks,
Vice Chairman asked if there are other towers to located on this site? Attorney Parisi stated no.
Marks, Vice Chairman asked what happens with the fifth carrier? Attorney Parisi explained
there are three active carriers, AT&T, Verizon and T-Mobile and the standard design Is for four
carriers.

e Driveway permit from the Eidelweiss Property Owners Association: Marks, Vice Chairman
asked about the driveway permit? Attorney Parisis explained that the driveway permit from the
Eidelweiss association is necessary, but will only be pursued within 90 days of construction
commencement, as outlined by Eidelweiss's own rules. Communication regarding this
requirement has already begun with Eidelweiss's counsel.

o Tower visibility from different vantage points: Visibility tests, involving a balloon test,
demonstrated the tower's appearance from various points. Some residents expressed concerns
over visibility, noting that the balloon was perceptively above tree lines from certain areas like
Big Pea Porridge and other points around Eidelweiss.

¢ Road access and potential damage to roads and water systems: There were discussions about
potential road damage during construction and the necessity for bonds to insure against this.
Concerns about shallow water systems near the construction site were also raised, with
suggestions for surveying these areas in conjunction with obtaining necessary permits from
Eidelweiss.

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes

11/05/2025
Page 30of 9



Several residents expressed concerns as follows:

Kerry McNiven, 104 Eidelweiss Drive - Explained that from the balloon test was very visible
from Big Pea Porridge Pond.

Wooda McNiven, 104 Eidelweiss Drive - Asked about potential signal interference with existing
two towers.

Paul Calvo, (100 Oak Ridge Road - opposed the project, citing concerns about aesthetics,
property values, and questioning the benefit to the community.

Mark Graffam, 59 Appenvel Way - Stated that the weight limit on the roads leading to the site
is 13 tons and he questioned what is the weight of the tower? Attorney Parisi explained the
tower would be brought in on flatbed trucks and that they have already walked the roads.
Graffam asked if the Planning Board could can add a condition that Eidelweiss gets a bond for
any road damage. He further explained that a survey should be done of the “paper” road to get
to the site so as to not damage the water system and that the water line is shallow and should
be part of the bond. Price agreed that a bond request is reasonable through VDOE and not the
Planning Board. Graffam explained that Eidelweiss cannot deny a driveway permit. Price
explained that regardless of the bond, the applicant would have to fix the roads if damaged and
would need visual proof. Keriann Roman, Planning Board Attorney the board could make a
condition of approval if VDOW wants it.

Richard Boynton, (address unknown) — Asked how close is the tower going to be to the nearest
house? Attorney Parisi stated about 144 feet from a property line, several hundred feet away.

Paul Calvo, 100 Oak Ridge Road — He stated he opposes this project because is it 100 feet away
from his property. He further explained that he has coverage and that there is no benefit to put
in another tower and that it would affect property values. He further questioned the applicant
has the legal right to make a paper road. His last comment was that there are other ways to
bring telecommunications to town.

Attorney Parisi addressed the above concerns, explaining that:

The tower would have no signal interference with existing facilities.
The galvanized steel tower would be non-reflective.

The facility would improve coverage for T-Mobile users in the area.
The property would generate additional tax revenue for the town.

Gagnon asked if the road would open up to further subdivision? Attorney Parisi stated it is a driveway
from Oak Ridge Road and the have no control over what the landowner says. He further explained that

they are not building the road off of Oak Ridge Road for traffic it would be only for construction
purposes, no paving and it will only be used for access during the construction process and it will be
graveled.

Graffam stated once the road is constructed it will be a Class IV Road and would require an executed
waiver. Attorney Parisi stated he has a standard form agreement and he does not need permission from
the town but from VDOE who would require the waiver. Attorney Parisi stated they are just building a

driveway.

William Burnell = 1 Bern Drive - He explained some people have T-Mobile and questioned what
study was done to say the tower was needed? Attorney Parisi explained that he submitted an

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 4 of 9



Extensive report with the application. He further stated that T-Mobile offers streaming
at home and this would improve coverage residentially. Burnell asked if this would
improve King Pine? Attorney Parisi stated no and that Madison is topographically
challenged.

Marks, Vice Chairman closed public comment.

Marks, Vice Chairman asked the board if they had any questions?

Keriann Roman, Planning Board Attorney asked if there was any need or space for public safety?

Attorney Parisi stated the board can impose a condition for safety and the sheriff’s tower is a few feet

away.

After public comments and board comments, Keriann Roman, Planning Board Attorney suggested
several conditions to consider if the board approved the application:

a. Prior to issuance of a building permit, applicant shall submit a performance bond in an amount
sufficient to ensure all site development and construction is completed according to the final
plan approved. Section VI.A. and B.

a. On private property - Applicant requested waiver.
i. Waiver required in writing.

Potential COA

1. Space on the tower free of charge for public safety equipment of reasonable size and location
that won’t interfere with cell antennae.

2. Applicant’s tower removal bond shall be in a form approved by the Planning Board’s legal
counsel.

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall execute a Site Review Agreement
in compliance with Section VI.A. of the Madison Site Plan Regulations.

4. Any permits required from Eidelweiss Village District.

5. Limit hours of construction —8am-5pm, Monday through Friday.
6. No lighting on the Tower.

7. Submission of foundation design acceptable to building inspector.
8. Receipt of all necessary variances from ZBA.

9. Tower owner will maintain the driveway access.

10. On behalf of Eidelweiss, and only upon request of the Village District Commissioners to the
applicant, the following are required prior to the start of construction:

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 50f 9



a. Post a bond naming VDOE as oblige that is satisfactory to VDOE Commissioners to cover:
any damage to the Eidelweiss roads and any damage to the water system of abutters
and the public water system, any damage to other utilities, and improvements to the
paper road;

b. Conduct a survey or otherwise sufficiently identify the bounds of the paper road and
location of public water system;

c. RSA 674:41-type Release/Waiver for access road (maintenance, liability).

Attorney Parisi stated the Zoning Ordinance

Marks, Vice Chairman asked the board if they had any questions? Price stated we need to do a
continuance with all conditions because we do not have time to review and make a vote. Marks stated
if we vote, it would be based on conditions.

Littlefield asked if we can continue again? Keriann Roman, Planning Board Attorney stated yes.
Attorney Parisi asked if the board could vote tonight to approve the site plan with Attorney Romans
suggested conditions to be reviewed and voted on at the next meeting? Keriann Roman stated the
public hearing was closed and the board could continue to hammer out the conditions and the waiver
request would need to be in writing. Roman suggested the Planning Board continue the deliberations
and

The board decided to continue deliberations to the December 3, 2025 meeting to allow time to review
all the proposed conditions.

Motion by Price, seconded by Littlefield to continue deliberations by the board for Case #25-07 until
December 3, 2025, at 7:00 PM at the Madison Town Hall, Lower Level. The motion was voted on and
passed 7-0.

OLD BUSINESS:

e Master Plan Steering Committee — Gagnon provided an update on the Master Plan Steering
Committee. She explained that they had finalized their proposal with North Country Council
(NCC) for $19,735, which includes a visioning session ($3,600) and mailing costs ($700). The
funds would come from the $25,000 authorized at last year's town meeting. For the second
phase, they would need an additional $12,265, which would require a warrant article at the next
town meeting.

There was discussion about whether Madison should become a member of NCC at an annual
cost of $4,285, which would provide access to grant writing and other services.

Motion by Marks, seconded by Littlefield to present to the Selectmen, a budget of $17,735 to complete
the first four phases of the master plan update. The motion passed with a vote of 6-0 with one

abstention from Price, who serves on the Board of Selectmen.

CHAIRMAN'’S REPORT — Marc Ohlson: Chairman Ohlson had nothing to report.

SELECTMAN’S REPORT — Adam Price: Price had nothing to report but noted they were entering budget
season, which would be discussed later in the meeting

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 6 of 9



PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC.: — The previously scheduled site visit to Pike Industries on October 9th was
cancelled because Larry Major from Pike Industries, Inc., would be in California. A new date of October
16th at 3:30 PM was proposed, as both Larry Major and potentially the Quarry Manager would be
available. The board discussed the meeting location, confirming it would be at the first driveway
entrance to Pike Industries when heading north on Route 113, past CP Smith's building.

Motion by Price, seconded by Marks to allow Pike Industries, Inc., to cancel the bond with Liberty
Mutual for Tax Map 207, Lot 4 until this lot is used. The motion was voted on and passed 7-0.

#2026 Budget Review: Young, Land Use Boards Administrator stated that the North Country
Council membership fee changed from when she submitted the proposed 2026 Budget to Linda
Shackford. Young explained that the board needs to revise the budget, make a motion and vote
on it tonight.

Motion by Marks, seconded by Littlefield to approve the proposed budget for 2026 in the revised
amount of $16,454 and to present this to the Selectboard. The motion was voted and passed 6-0-1 as
Price abstained as he is the Chairman of the Selectboard.

Motion by Price, seconded by Marks to approve Keriann Roman, Esquire and Kate Young, Land Use
Boards Administrator to work together on drafting the updated regulations to the Zoning Ordinance.
The motion was voted on and passed 7-0.

CORRESPONDENCE/ADMINISTRATION:
Discussion with Keriann Roman, Esq. about required zoning changes

Keriann Roman, Esq., Planning Board attorney briefed the board on the numerous amendments to state
law this year that necessitate updates to Madison's zoning and land use regulations. Specific areas
highlighted included:

e Class VI road regulations: These were noted to have changed such that the control that the town
had over roads has been reduced, especially concerning denying waivers, which makes certain
updates necessary.

e Parking space requirements: There's a limit meaning the town can now only require 1 parking
space per residential unit. This change directly affects what's currently specified in the town's
zoning regulations and will need modification.

e Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s): Several adjustments were cited, including removing the
requirement that occupants be family members and changes to size restrictions. These changes
are aimed at facilitating more residential development, and thus will require Madison to align its
existing regulations with the new state law.

Due to these changes, Roman requested permission to work with Young, Land Use Boards Administrator
to draft necessary zoning amendments. The aim was to have these drafts ready for the board's review
by their December 3™ meeting, thereby setting the stage for a required public hearing at the Planning
Board’s meeting on January 7" ahead of the town meeting. The urgency stems from the statutory
deadlines that require amendments to be posted well before town meetings.

Furthermore, Attorney Roman mentioned that if the board wished to eliminate any ambiguities in
regulations concerning multiple units on a single lot, particularly in areas like Eidelweiss, this would be

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 7 of 9



the opportune moment. She acknowledged that she already had prospective language ready to address
these points, prepared during discussions on prior cases.

Motion by Price, seconded by Marks to allow Keriann Roman, Esquire, Planning Board Attorney and
Kate Young, Land Use Boards Administrator to work together to draft the necessary zoning amendments

required by the State of New Hampshire. The motion was voted on and passed 7-0.

COLEMAN’S PIT:

8:45pm - Motion by Price, seconded by Littlefield to enter Non-Public Session per RSA 91-A:311(l)
Consideration of legal advice provided by legal counsel, either in writing or orally, to one or more
members of the public body, even where legal counsel is not present.

Roll Call Vote: Marks — aye; Price - aye; Littlefield - aye; Nordlund — aye; Hempel — aye; Littlefield -
age; and Gagnon - aye. The motion passed by a Roll Call Vote of 7-0.

Ohlson exited the building at 8:50 pm.

The public portion of the meeting was adjourned, and the board entered a non-public session to discuss
the Coleman Pit matter.

The board discussed the survey that Horizon’s Engineering did for Coleman’s pit.

Motion by Price, seconded by Littlefield to adjourn non-public session and reconvene the public session
at 9:04 pm. The motion was voted on and passed with a vote of 7-0.

Roll Call Vote: Marks — aye; Price - aye; Littlefield - aye; Nordlund — aye; Hempel — aye. The motion
passed by a Roll Call Vote of 7-0.

Motion by Price, seconded by Nordlund to adjourn the meeting at 9:05 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Katharine Young,
Land Use Boards Administrator

Madison Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
11/05/2025

Page 8 of 9



	APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Marks, seconded by Littlefield, to approve the agenda as presented. The motion passed with a vote of 6-0.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES: October 1, 2025:
	Motion by Marks, seconded by Price to approve the October 1, 2025 minutes as written.  The motion passed with a vote of 6-0.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES: October 1, 2025 – Non-Public (made public)
	PUBLIC COMMENT/NEW BUSINESS: Chairman Ohlson asked if there was any public comment.  Mark Graffam, an Eidelweiss Commissioner explained that he was here tonight to ask for a contingency on approving the building permit for the cell phone tower and he ...
	NEW BUSINESS:
	Case #25-07 - Vertex Towers, LLC - Site Plan Review

	Chairman Ohlson read aloud Case #25-07 – Site Plan Review request from Francis D. Parisi, Esquire, authorized agent for Vertex Towers, LLC, 0 Tasker Hill Road (off Oak Ridge Road), Tax Map 206, Lot 71 – The proposed project is construction of a wirele...
	Paul Marks, Vice Chairman explained that he will be taking over the duties of chairing Case #25-07.  Young, Land Use Boards Administrator stated postings were done on October 29, 2025 at Madison Town Hall, Upper and Lower Levels, Madison and Silver La...
	Motion by Littlefield, seconded by Price to elevate Gagnon to a full voting member.  The motion passed with a vote of 5-0.
	OLD BUSINESS:
	Ohlson exited the building at 8:50 pm.

